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THE APPROPRIATION BILL,  1960 

THE DEPUTY MINISTER OF FINANCE 
(SHRI B. R. BHAGAT): Sir, 1 move; 

"That the Bill to authorise payment and 
appropriation of certain further sums from 
and out of the Consolidated Fund of India 
for the services of the financial year 1959-
60, as passed by the Lok Sabha, be taken   
into   consideration." 

DR. R. B. GOUR (Andhra Pradesh) : Sir, I 
don't think there is quorum in the House for 
the consideration  of this Appropriation Bill. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: We will  ring 
the quorum bell. 

(Quorum bell rings.) 

Now, Mr. Bhagat, we have quorum and 
you can proceed. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: Sir, this Bill arises 
out of tin; Supplementary Demands of Rs. 
83.2 crores voted by the Lok Sabha on the 
23rd February last and the expenditure of Rs. 
6.37 crores 'charged' on the Consolidated 
Fund of India, as detailed in Supplementary 
Demands presented to the House on the 15th 
February, 1960. This is the third and the last 
batch of Supplementary Demands presented 
in the current year. The total additional 
requirements amount to Rs. 89,57 crores of 
which Rs. 35' 58 crores relate to revenue 
expenditure, Rs. 37.99 crores to Capital and 
the balance of Rs. 16 crores "to Loans and 
Advances. Detailed explanations have, as 
usual, been given in the foot-notes below the 
Supplementary Demands statements. I would, 
therefore, make a referenae only to the main 
items. 

Of the increase in revenue expenditure, the 
transfer of the surcharge on iron and steel to 
the Iron and Steel Equalisation Fund accounts 
for an increase of Rs. 8.89 crores. The sur-
charge is first credited to revenue and an 
equivalent provision is require to 

bo made in the expenditure estimates for 
transfer to the Fund. It is not possible to 
foresee the exact amount of the receipts likely 
to be realised during the year and, if they 
exceed expectations, as has happened this 
year, a supplementary grant to cover the 
larger transfer to the Fund becomes 
unavoidable. An additional provision of Rs. 6 
crores is required .inly for meeting the 
payments for certain aircraft and stores which 
could not be made last year and have been 
settled this year. The Indian Airlines 
Corporation has, so far, been advanced loans 
to meet its cash losses. As the Company is not 
expected to be in a position to discharge this 
liability, it has been decided to convert these 
loans into a subsidy. In addition, a further 
subsidy will be paid to the Company to cover 
its losses on account of depreciation, but this 
amount will be deposited with Government as 
an interest-bearing depreciation fund. The 
total amount of subsidy involved is Rs. 5'24 
crores. Rs. 4 crores are required, under the 
Interest Appropriation, to meet the interest 
liability on the loans received from West 
Germany for which full details were not 
available at the time of framing the original 
estimates. Payments to the States of their 
share of Union Excise Duties account for an 
excess of Rs. 2.3 crores. As hon. Members are 
aware, 25 per cent, of the net proceeds of the 
basic Excise Duties on matches, tobacco, 
sugar, vegetable products, coffee, tea, paper 
and vegetable non-essential oils are 
distributed amongst the States, while the 
entire net proceeds of additional excises 
which replace the Sales Tax formerly levied 
by the State Governments, accrue to them. 
With the increase in the actual collections, 
during the year, there is a corresponding 
increase in the share payable to the States. 

On the Capital side, Rs. 17.75 crores are in 
respect of purchase of food-grains. But these 
would be more than covered by the additional 
sale proceeds land recoveries. Rs. 9.14 crores 
are required for the import of 
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assistance given by the United States, Rs. 4.48 
crores for the purchase of shares of the 
National Coal Development Corporation and 
Rs. 3.58 crores for adjustment of the aid 
received from Canada for rural electrification 
schemes. 

An additional provision of Rs. Ifi crores has 
been asked for under Loans and Advances. A 
provision of Rs. 122 crores was included in 
the Budget for loans to the Hindustan Steel 
Limited, but with the increase in the tempo of 
expenditure, the requirements of the Company 
are now estimated at Rs. 145 crores. The 
excess of Rs. 7 crores will be met by 
reappropriation of available savings and the 
balance of Rs. 16 crores from the 
supplementary demand. 
1   P.M. 

As has been mentioned in the introductory 
remarks to the Supplementary Demands, of 
the total additional requirements of Rs. 89.57 
crores, Rs. 49.12 crores would be covered by 
additional receipts, recoveries or adjustments. 
The net outgo from the Consolidated Fund, On 
this account, would thus be of the order of Rs. 
40.45 crores only. This does not, however, 
represent an excess over the original Budget as 
it does not take into account the savings under 
other grants or the variations in the revenue 
estimates. The exact position about the Budget 
as a whole will be known only from the 
revised estimates for the year to be presented 
this evening. 

Hon. Members might question why these 
demands cannot be anticipated and included in 
the original estimates. Budget estimates are 
framed on the best information available at the 
time and every possible effort is made to 
foresee the future requirements accurately but 
conditions do arise when, with a view to meet 
the changing needs of the Government from 
time to time, it becomes necessary to approach 
Parliament for additional funds An alternative 
to this procedure would be to ask for much 
larger 

provision in the first instance which, I am 
sure, the House would not expect me to adopt 
We have, therefore, to make as conservative 
an estimate as possible and ask for additional 
funds, wherever required, during the course of 
the year. 

With these words, Sir, I move. 
The question was proposed. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: We will 
continue the debate at 2-30 P.M. The House 
stands adjourned till 2-30 
P.M. 

The  House  then   adjourned for 
lunch at one of the clock. 

The House reassembled after lunch at 
half-past two of the clock. THE VICE-
CHAIRMAN (SHRI DAHYABHAI V. PATEL) in the 
Chair. 
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SHHI BHUPESH      GUPTA      (West -
Bengal):       Mr.      Vice-Chairman, .should 
like to refer to Demand No. 18 oi the External 
Affairs Ministry. You will  find  from  the   
explanatory  note that they are asking for an 
additional sum of about Rs.  40  lakhs—we    
hact already  sanctioned  Rs.   10  lakhs—for 
the Tibetan refugees.    That is to say, 
according  to  their  demand  for      the 
•current year we have to give    them Rs.  50 
lakhs.    Rs. 10 lakhs we    have already  given   
and  there   is  now      a demand for Rs.  40  
lakhs.    And    this money is being sought here 
xvhen we read in  the  news  papers  that  
mule- loa^ls and aeroplane-loads      of    gold, 
bullion,   silver  and      other   treasures have  
been   brought  into  this  country by  and/or on  
behalf      of the     Dalai Lama and some of 
these are     being disposed of in  Calcutta      
and     other places.    So far the  Government 
does not seem to have made up its mind as to 
what the status of this wealth    is d as to 
whether it could acquire a part of it—to be 
utilised for the reha- 

bilitation of the Tibetan refugees, ./hen I asked 
this question I got an indication from the 
Prime Minister that perhaps their mind was 
working in this direction. But no firm decision 
has been taken, whereas the properties are 
being disposed of. It seems, Sir, that 
according to the Dalai Lama, what is his is 
his; what is theirs is theirs and what is ours is 
also theirs. We put the refugees on their feet 
and we make the Indian tax-payers pay for 
them but what has been brought from Tibet by 
them would not be available for the relief of 
these people. It is a strange state of affairs. 
And nobody knows how much wealth there is. 
All kinds of speculations are going on. Now, 
Mr. Thondup, the brother of the Dalai Lama 
seems to be trying to make out as if the value 
of the treasure is of the order of Rs. 50 lakhs. 
In today's Statesman here is a report  which 
says: — 

"Mr. Thondup claimed that the treasure 
fetched a little over Rs. 50 lakhs but 
Sikkimese and Calcutta bankers were 
reported in Calcutta as saying that the value 
was in the region of Rs. 12 crores." 

This is what Calcutta banking circles md the 
business circles are saying and these reports 
come from Kalim-pong, from the Special 
Correspondent of the Statesman who claims 
that he is in the know of things and has got 
access to proper information. 

Here is an earlier Report—it is very very 
interesting—which came out in the Statesman 
of 17th February. This is what it says: — 

"The Dalai Lama's treasure, as saturated 
with romance as it is fabulous is now in a 
Calcutta strong room, being sold ingot by 
ingot and bag by bag of antique coins. The 
gold and silver ingots are made from 
countless offerings made to successive 
Dalai Lamas over the  centuries." 

And here they say that there were 40 mule 
loads of gold and over 600      of 
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the wealth was so much that it required 40 
mules to carry the gold and 600 mules to carry 
the consignments of silver. Again the 
Hindustan Times, a paper very friendly to the 
Dalai Lama, whose owners have given him a 
house to live, also says that the contents of the 
treasure boxes weighed about 1500 maunds 
and the reference is to gold, bullion, jewellery 
and so on. So enormous wealth on all showing 
has been brought into India; some of it is lying 
in the strong rooms of banks and some is lying 
in other places. But what do we find? We find 
that they are trying to dispose of this. Mr. 
Thondup, the Dalai Lama's brother, who 
seems to be dealing with this matter—he 
himself admitted that he was responsible for 
the sale and investment of the treasure—
disclosed that he had been asked to give a 
clear picture of the whole thing. Now, 
although Mr. Thondup thought that the money 
would be used for the Tibetans he disclosed 
that the sale was being effected by a Marwari 
banking house of Calcutta and Sikkim which 
was not accepting any commission. This is 
what Mr. Thondup says. He also disclosed that 
the money realised from the sale of the 
treasure would be sent to the U.N. for pleading 
for the case of Tibet. So this is what we find in 
the popularly read newspapers from their 
correspondents in Calcutta, Patna and New 
Delhi. It is also suggested by the same sources 
that the recent China Aggression Resistance 
Conference which was held in Calcutta . . . 

THE DEPUTY MINISTER OF EXTERNAL 
AFFAIRS (SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON) : 
What is the name of the paper? 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I am not 
quoting; I am speaking from memory. 

. . . where the leader of the P.S.P. gave a 
thundering speech against the Prime Minister 
and then disowned it here in Parliament, that 
conference is reported to have been financed   
from 

that treasure. This is what the newspapers say. 
Now, they do not seem to bother about these 
things, the statement of the Dalai Lama and of 
his   entourage . . . 

SHRI FARIDUL HAQ ANSARI (Uttar 
Pradesh): Which paper has reported that the 
conference was financed by this treasure? 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I do not. say. It is 
what the newspapers say. It is a matter for 
investigation. 

SHRI ROHIT M. DAVE (Bombay): Many 
newspapers also say that the Communist Party 
is getting money from Russia and China. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Now we are 
concerned with the Dalai Lama. 

SHRI ROHIT M. DAVE: We are concerned 
with the Communist Party because  . . . 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Sir, the shoe 
seems to be pinching. The-wearer knows 
where the shoe pinches. {Interruption.) 

SHRI ROHIT M. DAVE: We have got ears 
to hear what you say. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I do maintain 
that; the newspapers say things which    . . . 

SHRI ROHIT M. DAVE: I also-maintain 
that what the newspapers say is not true. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Well, youi have 
denied it.    You have said that. 

DR. A. N. BOSE (West Bengal): Was it 
Swadhinatal 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: No; it is not 
Swadhinata. If it had said, I would have said 
so because it is my party's paper. 

Now. let me come to the point. I am net 
concerned with that part of it   now.     Maybe,   
the  next   All-Indiai 
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Conference is also looking forward to such 
wealth because such great speeches will have 
to be made. Anti-China conferences, anti-
Nehru conference.?, have to be held and if 
some treasure flows in that direction, what is 
the harm in it? Because after all Panchsheel 
was born in sin, and therefore there must be 
virtue in the Dala:  Lama's  treasure. 

SHRI ROHIT M. DAVE: We are not 
interested in becoming traitors to our own 
country. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA; Now, Sir, forget 
that aspect of the matter. I am not interested in 
the political part of it any more. Now, about 
this treasure the Government is treating the 
matter very lightly, making a claim of Rs. 50 
lakhs on the exchequer, but at the same time 
treating this treasure with unheard of lightness. 
And I am astounded by the conduct of the 
Government of India. First of all, I say that the 
Government of India is disregarding the 
international usages in this matter. That is a 
matter of interpretation. What is the usage, 
what is international law there? I have got 
Oppenheim's International Law, Volume I 
here. It gives certain indications as to how 
such matters are to be dealt with. If you refer 
to page 619, Chapter VII, you will find that it 
is said that every State exercises Territorial 
Supremacy over all parts of its territory, 
whether they are subjects or aliens and 
excludes the prosecution of the alien there in 
the foreign State. 

Now, this Chapter deals with aliens ard 
rights of aliens. Then, Sir, at page 627 you 
will find that the aliens in similar conditions 
can under no circumstances expect greater 
rights and wider rights than the citizens of the 
State in which the asylum has be<m given. 
That is clearly stated at page 627. Refer to 
page 629. You Will find such aliens when 
they come with such treasure are liable to all 
taxes and other things: 

"Since a State holds only territorial and 
not personal supremacy over an alien 
within its boundaries, it can never under 
any circumstances prevent him from 
leaving its territory, provided he has 
fulfilled his local obligations, such as pay-
ment of rates and taxes, of fines, of private 
debts," 

and so on. 

What I have read out makes it obligatory on 
the part of the Government to acquaint itself 
with the assets of the Dalai Lama and his 
entourage, because they are liable to wealth 
tax, they are liable to expenditure tax, thoy are 
liable to gift tax and later on income-tax and 
all the laws operate. I ask the hon. Minister to 
get up and state here, on behalf of the 
Government, these laws do not operate. 

Then, Sir, come to page 630. There you 
will find again another interesting 
provision:— 

"An alien leaving a State can take his 
property away with him on the same 
conditions as a national, and a tax for 
leaving the country, of tax upon the 
property he takes awaj   with him cannot be 
levied." 

It is an authoritative book. International law is 
clear on the subject if you give asylum to an 
alien. I am not going into the Tightness or 
wrong-ness of giving asylum. That is beside 
the point. Such an alien, as in the ca:e of the 
Dalai Lama and his entourage are immediately 
subject to all our municipal laws, subject to 
fiscal laws, subject to taxation, subject to 
everything. Therefore, Government have full 
powers. The only thing is that they are not, for 
reasons known best to themselves, exercising 
this power. 

Now, therefore, it is an international law 
and the position is clear. I would ark the 
Prime Minister—well he may have his own 
reasons to be generous, to be kind, to be 
solicitous and to be decent and humane.   But 
he certainly 
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should not be the person to promote violation 
of international law and usages. That is only 
one aspect of the matter. What is more is that 
the entire provision, after provision of the 
Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 1947 is 
being violated in the whole transaction and I 
pointed out previously to the House how it was 
being done. Please do not bring in apolitical 
questions. Whatever opinion you may or may 
not have, you have to examine on merits 
whether I can make out before this hon. House 
a case that the Foreign Exchange Regulation 
Act is being clearly violated. But before that I 
wish to make one point clear. It might be said 
that the property which the Dalai Lama h?s 
brought here does not enjoy the privilege and 
immunity of a property of a diplomat, because 
we afford no diplomatic status to the Dalai 
Lama. We may revere him. Some of you may 
revere him. That is beside the point. The Dalai 
Lama is not here enjoying any diplomatic 
status and I dc not think the Prime Minister 
will ever say this thing. He is here in the 
capacity of a private individual. Whatever else 
he may or may not be, be is here in the 
capacity of a private individual. Therefore the 
laws that govern the properties of the head of 
.a State or the head of a Government do net at 
all apply here. Besides, if such a suggestion 
were to be made thai, such immunities should 
be given to the property of the Dalai Lama or 
to the person of the Dalai Lama, which go to 
the head of a State or an envoy in this country, 
it would give rise tc serious international 
complications and particularly in international 
law, for the simple reason that we have got 
diplomatic relations with the People's Republic 
of China and the Dalai Lama is not here as a 
representative of the People's Republic of 
China, presenting his credentials to the 
President and enjoying out of that certain 
immunities. I do not think that it is anybody's 
case here. Therefore, here we are dealing with 
a private individual. 

Now, Sir, how did the properties come? The 
origin of the properties was the Potala palace. 
According to me it is important for the 
Government to take note of it. I am only 
saying this to draw the attention of the 
Government if that is so. And they have 
admitted, the Dalai Lama's brother has 
admitted and the officials have made a 
statement that these re first shifted in 1951 kirn 
and from there recently to Calcutta. The origin 
was Potala pslace. The property belongs to the 
Dalai Lama. Now, these are not, that way, 
personal properties. The Dalai LAma lives in a 
state of renunciation The properties of the 
Dalai Lama do not- go by the ordinary law of 
succession, and inheritance to his relatives. 
They devolve on the next Dalai Lama. For 
instance, if another Dalai Lama were to be 
appointed there and suppose this Dalai Lama 
is no more, then who becomes the owner of 
that property? The next Dalai Lama. The status 
of the property, therefore, is something quite 
different. Now, therefore, this is one aspect of 
the matter. This is a matter for the Government 
to consider and I leave it to the External 
Affairs Ministry to decide this question of the 
status of this property. It is not an alien 
property in the sense you get it or just as it has 
come with the personal property. He has come 
with the properties of the State. The State here 
is the People's Republic of China. The Tibetan 
region is part of it. That is a matter which will 
raise a lot of complica-I would ask the 
Ministry to consider it having regard to the 
origin of that property. Somebody might say 
this property is held in a fiduciary capacity. 
The Dalai Lama at best can have only life 
interest in the property. Since the next Dalai 
Lama is the prospective heir to this property, it 
should not be dealt with just as Mr. Thondup 
likes or in a manner his entourage likes. These 
are important matters of international law and 
I am surprised that the External Affairs 
Ministry is completely shutting its eyes to this 
very   vital   question   of   international 
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law. if the Prime Minister applies his mind, he 
will find a proper answer and solution to this 
problem. 

SHRI J. S. BISHT (Uttar Pradesh): Why is 
the hon. Member agitated over the Dalai 
Lama so much? 

SHRI. BHUPESH GUPTA: I am agitated 
about your ignorance that has been there in 
this matter. You should have been agitated. 
You do not  know  whose   treasure it is    ... 

SHKI J. S. BISHT: What is your concern? 

Sam BHUPESH GUPTA: Anyway, you 
may not be agitated. I am not agitated about 
the Dalai Lama. 

SHRI J. S. BISHT: Even China is not 
agitated about it. 

SHRI ROHIT M. DAVE: And he is voicing 
that feeling in the House. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I need not go 
into this thing. Let us take the case as 
presented by them, what Mr. Thorvdup has 
said. He has said. that these properties are the 
personal properties of the Dalai Lama. Take it 
as the personal property of the Dalai Lama for 
the present, the Dalai Lama as a private citizen 
and his friends having some personal pro-
perty, it has come here. How did they come? 
They came from Tibet, a region of the Chinese 
People's Republic, from Potala palace, to Cal-
cutta. How did they come? They came via 
Sikkim. Now, since that came via Sikkim, the 
laws do not apply   .   .   . 

SHRI HARIHAR PATEL (Orissa): How are 
we concerned with this question? 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Why are you 
agitated? I am suggesting how you can utilise 
the money. 

SHRI ROHIT M. DAVE: Because of the 
slanderous remarks you are making here. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Why is the 
P.S.P. so much agitated. Has the Dalai Lama 
made a will that they are going to inherit his 
property. I do not want to come in their way if 
the Dalai Lama says he can make a will. Then 
I will consider later on    ... 

3 P.M. 

SHRI ROHIT M. DAVE: I do not want you 
to come in their way. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Because you 
seem to be looking forward to a great 
inheritance. 

\ Now, Sir, it came from Tibet to India via 
Sikkim. It was there for nine years. It was in 
transit. I repeat that it was in transit. 
Destination was Calcutta, and the place of 
origin was Tibet. Therefore, ordinary laws 
apply. Suppose, Sir, somebody transfers some 
property to Tripura, say, a Pakistani citizen, 
and then gets the property at Calcutta, will he 
be exempted from the laws if he can show that 
the property remained there for two or three 
years in Tripura or in somebody's garden at 
Tripura? No, he will not get exemption. He 
has to make a declaration and the normal 
incidence under the law would follow. I do not 
know why such incidence is being waived in 
this case. This is the position. It looks like an 
act of smuggling in law, whatever else it may 
be, because you have to go by law. Every year 
three thousand cases are started for breach of 
the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act. This 
case is completely ignored. But I am not 
concerned with even the smuggling part of it. 
Only I regret that the policemen of West 
Bengal have been associated with it. They 
have been providing escort from Cooch Behar 
or Sikkim to Calcutta. Things are not done that 
way. That is what I say. You could have 
passed an ordinance giving them all immunity 
and exempted their entire property. I think the 
police acted wrongly, in an improper way, 
circumventing the law.    It  was most 
unfortunate    that 
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themselves in this manner. Now, Sir, the 
Deputy Minister will have to answer 
everything. In the interests of the country I 
point out to you that he has got to maintain a 
right to look after this property. Here is no 
party question. I am not going to look after 
the property, it is they who will look after it. 
The only thing is that I am presenting this 
case before them, and I would ask them to 
kindly listen to it. 

Here is the Foreign Exchange Regulation 
Act, Act VII of 1947. The Preamble to the 
Act says: 

"An Act to regulate certain payments, 
dealings in foreign exchange and securities 
and the import and export of currency  and  
bullion. 

Whereas it is expedient in the economic 
and financial interests of India to provide 
for the regulation of certain payments, 
dealings in foreign exchange and securities 
and the import and export of currency and 
bullion." 

It is a case of import of currency and bullion 
and is hence governed by the Foreign  
Exchange Regulation Act. 

Again, in section 2 of the Foreign 
Exchange Regulation Act you would find the 
definition of various things— 

"2(c) 'foreign currency' means any 
currency other than Indian currency." 

Therefore, any currency that they may have 
will come within the purview of this Act. 

Then, Sir, there is the definition of 'gold'— 

'Gold' included gold in the form of coin, 
whether legal tender or not, or in the form 
of bullion or ingot, whether refined or not, 
and jewellery or articles made wholly or 
mainly of gold " 

Then there are other provisions also. 
Therefore, you will find that almost the entire 
lot of assets, gold, bullion, silver, jewellery, 
securities, etc., which have been brought by 
them, come under the Foreign Exchange 
Regulation Act. There is no escape from it. 
Let there bo no mistake about it. Therefore, I 
submit that the entire property of the Dalai 
Lama, no matter who holds it, the one that is 
alleged to be the property of the Dalai Lama, 
whether it is personal or not, comes under the 
Foreign Exchange Regulation Act. We do not 
know of any other Act which governs it. The 
Foreign Exchange Regulation Act is the law 
governing it. All the provisions of the Act 
therefore follow. 

Sir, I shall invite your attention to section 4 
of the Act which is about restrictions on 
dealing in foreign exchange:— 

"Except with the previous general or 
special permission of the Reserve Bank, no 
person other than an authorised dealer shall 
in India, and no person resident in India 
other than an authorised dealer shall outside 
India, buy or borrow from, or sell or lend 
to, or exchange with, any person not being 
an authorised dealer, any foreign 
exchange." 

Now, Mr. Thondup has admitted that he was 
dealing in the properties of the Dalai Lama. 
Has he been authorised under the Foreign 
Exchange Regulation Act to deal in such pro-
perties? Government ought to furnish an 
answer to it. They have not at all authorised 
him. He is taking an unauthorised step which 
comes within the mischief of section 23 of the 
Foreign Exchange Regulation Act which 
empowers the Government, that is the 
Director of Enforcement, to impose penalty. I 
will come to that later. 

Then,  Sir,  there is section 4(3):— 

"Where any foreign exchange is acquired 
by any person other than an authorised 
dealer for any parti- 
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cular purpose, or where any person has 
been permitted conditionally to acquire 
foreign exchange, the said person shall not 
use the foreign exchange so acquired 
otherwise than for that purpose or, as the 
case may be, fail to comply with any 
condition to which the permission granted 
to him is subject, and where any foreign 
exchange so acquired cannot be used or, as 
the case may be, the conditions cannot be 
complied with, the said person shall 
without delay sell the foreign exchange to 
an authorised dealer." 

Has this provision been complied with? Not at 
all. We do not know. The Government can 
appoint an authorised dealer by notification. 
Which notification the Government has issued 
in order to empower Mr. Thondup or anybody 
to deal with this property in the manner in 
which they have been dealing? Have they been 
authorised under the Reserve Bank 
Regulations or under the Finance Ministry's 
notification to act as autho-, rised dealers in 
respect of the Dalai Lama's property in order to 
dispose it of in this manner? No, they cannot 
produce that. I do not know whether some 
fictitious document will come. But no Gazette 
of India carries such notification. 

Then I come to section 5. I say that the 
Finance Minister is in the soup. Section 5 
provides for restrictions on payments. 
Payments are being made. Banks are making 
payments on behalf of the Dalai Lama. His 
brother is making payments to the U.N., to the 
Conferences, whatever they may be. Here, the 
section says:— 

"Save as may be provided in and in 
accordance with any general or special 
exemption from the provisions of this sub-
section which may be granted conditionally 
or unconditionally by the Reserve Bank, no 
person in, or resident in, India shall—" 

There is a whole series of restrictions, I think 
there are about eight restrictions.    Are they 
being observed? 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT:  Yes. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: 1 would like to 
know this from the hon. Minister and he must 
submit that before this hon. House, and I 
would ask the hon.  House to consider   .   . 

SHRI  B.   R.   BHAGAT:   The     hon. 
Member has not said anything specifically 
about payments. How does he say that the 
restrictions are not being observed? 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: You produce the 
document here that you have authorised them. 
You cannot get away like that. No smartness 
like that will permit you to escape like that. 
See how many sections they are violating. 

Then I come to section 8. Section 8 deals 
with restrictions on import and export of 
certain currency and bullion. I do not go into 
the details of this section. This section which 
provides for restrictions on export and import 
is being violated because import has taken 
place. 

Then I come to section 9. Under this 
section, well, there is power given to the 
Reserve Bank to compel them to sell all these 
things to the Reserve Bank if they like. Then 
there is section 11 which gives the Govern-
ment wide powers to regulate the uses, etc. of 
imported gold and silver. It says:— 

"The Central Government may, by 
notification in the Official Gazette, impose 
such conditions as its thinks necessary or 
expedient on the use or disposal of or 
dealing-; in gold and silver prior to, or at 
the time  of,  import  into India." 

May I know why this restriction should not 
have been imposed? What is the 
consideration? Why is all this being dealt 
with by the Calcutta banker?  And  the  whole  
of    Calcutta 
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it and newspaper reports are appearing, but the 
Reserve Bank and the Government of India— 
the Finance Ministry in particular— are 
sleeping over this matter as if nothing has 
happened. Are we to handle our affairs of 
finance in this manner? They should come out 
and tell us whether there was any ground for 
restriction and if not, why not. And if there 
was any ground for restriction, why did they 
not impose such a restriction especially when 
moneys are used for purposes which, 
according to Mr. Thondup, were for sending 
delegations from here to the United Nations to 
plead against India and to fight against India's 
position in the United Nations with regard to 
the question of Tibet? Well, it is a serious 
matter. I think you cannot escape the 
responsibility by just giving a kind of smart 
reply. 

Then, Sir, I come to section 13(3) and 
13(4). Section 13(4) is about the transfer of 
securities. I have already pointed out that 
properties are being transferred. It is an 
admitted fact, admitted by one who claims to 
be authorised by the Dalai Lama. Now, in 
regard to regulation of export and transfer of 
securities, section 13(1) says:— 

"Notwithstanding anything contained in 
section 81 of the Companies Act, 1956, no 
person shall, except with the general or 
special permission of the Reserve Bank,—" 

Now, has the permission of the Reserve Bank 
been sought in this matter? If so, has it been 
given? If so, on what grounds has it been 
given? I would like to know from the hon. 
Minister. I seek information from him on this 
matter. 

Similarly, you see section 13(4) also again.    
It says:— 

"Notwithstanding    anything    con-ed  in 
any other law, no person shall, except with 
the permission of the   Reserve Bank,— 

(a) enter any transfer of securities in 
any register or book in which securities 
are registered or inscribed if he has any 
ground for suspecting that the transfer 
involves any contravention of the 
provisions   of   this   section,   .   .   ." 

From what I have told the House, at least 
there is a presumption of contravention of a 
certain law. If that is so. then nobody can 
make any transfer of such security of property 
without the express permission of the Reserve 
Bank of India. Has this permission been 
applied for and given? These questions have 
to be answered here on the floor of this 
House. There should not be any hush hush 
about it. 

Section 17 deals with restriction on 
settlement.     It  says:— 

"No person resident in India shall, except 
with the general or special permission of 
the Reserve Bank, settle any property, 
otherwise than by will    .    .    ." 

Not even if you make a will in favour of a 
political party— 

"so that a person who at the time of the 
settlement is resident outside India, 
elsewhere than in territories notified in this 
behalf by the Reserve Bank, will have an 
interest in the property, or exercise, other 
than by will, any power for payment in 
favour of a person who at the time of the 
exercise of the power is resident outside 
India elsewhere than in such notified  
territories." 

Now, that again is being violated. Suppose 
somebody who is in the United States of 
America or in some other country is paid out 
of this, it is a clear violation. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: We cannot answer 
any supposition. He has to say whether 
some'payment has been made outside India 
and without the permission of the Reserve 
Bank. We are certain that      .    . 
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ignoring it. I declare on the floor of this House 
that you cannot furnish any document to the 
satisfaction of this hon. House. You have not 
given permission nor permission has • been 
sought. Don't try to interrupt me in this 
manner. If you have any document, come and 
place it before the Members and lay it on the 
Table of the House and I shall stand corrected 
over this matter. It is my duty, Sir. 

No settlement of the property can take 
place without the sanction of the Reserve 
Bank under the Foreign Exchange Regulation 
Act. If any transaction had taken place, that 
transaction would be null and void, would be 
void ab initio; in law it would have no legal 
status. You can set aside the transaction 
straightaway. If it has not taken place, then 
you should immediately call for the property 
papers and go in for proper action. 

Then I come to section 19 and will show 
you how they are not behaving. This section 
gives power to the Central Government to 
call for information.    It says: — 

"The Central Government may, at any 
time by notification in the Official Gazette, 
direct owners, subject to such exceptions, if 
any, as may be specified in the notification, 
of such foreign exchange or foreign 
securities as may be so specified, to make a 
return thereof to the Reserve Bank within 
such period, and giving such particulars, as 
may be so specified." 

Such a power you have got. 
Then section 19(3) says: — 

"If on a representation in writing, made 
by a person authorised in this behalf by the 
Central Government or the Reserve Bank, a 
District Magistrate, Sub-Divisional Magis-
trate, Presidency Magistrate or Magistrate 
of the first class, has reason to believe that a 
contravention of any of the provisions of 
this Act has been, or is being or is about to 
be, committed in any place," 

then he can take a certain action. Is any of 
your Magistrates acting? Or is there no 
ground for suspicion of any contravention? 
Explain these things to this House. I say, there 
is a clear admission of contravention, not 
merely of suspicion. Neither the Government 
of India nor the Reserve Bank nor the 
Magistrates are acting in this manner in order 
to defend the law and bring the entire 
opetation with regard to the Dalai Lama's 
treasure within the four corners of the law. 
What else could be more scandalous than this 
pitiable, miserable violation of the Foreign 
Exchange Regulation Act which the 
Government of India and its high-ups are 
allowing? I should like the House to consider 
this thing. 

Again, I come to section 23. You know, Sir, 
that one Mr. Jain was hauled up under this 
section. I am not going into that case. Many 
are punished. This section deals with penalty 
to be awarded to anyone who contravenes the 
provisions of section 4, section 5, section 9 or 
section 12(2). Section 4 is about restrictions 
on dealings in foreign exchange. Section 5 is 
also a section to which section 23 refers and 
this is about restrictions on payments. Under 
section 9, there are regulations about the 
dealings. If anything has been done in 
violation of section 4 or section 5 or section 9 
or section 12, it comes within the mischief of 
this penal clause—section 23 of this Act and 
this penal section provides, as you know from 
your experience already and as we all know 
from our experience, that: — 

"If any person contravenes the 
provisions of section 4, section 
5 ------" 

SHRI P. D. HIMATSINGKA (West 
Bengal): Are we discussing this Act or the 
Appropriation Bill?  We can only just refer to 
it if there is any violation of it; we can look 
into it. We are not discussing this Act. 
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discussing the Act; I am discussing your 
crime, your violation. 

SHRI P. D. HIMATSINGKA: It is not my 
crime. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I am going to 
haul them up. 

"... section 9 or sub-section {2} of section 
12 or of any rule, direction or order made 
thereunder, he shall— 

(a) be liable to such penalty not 
exceeding three times the value of the 
foreign exchange in respect of which the 
contravention has taken place . . ." 

I would like to ask: Will not the Dalai Lama 
and his authorised agent be liable to pay up to 
three times the value of the fore gn exchange -
nvolv-ed in the transactions. Then the other 
penal clause follows. This is the Foreign 
Exchange Regulation Act. Mr. Vice-
Chairman, I do not wish to introduce politics 
here. But I should like to have some kind of 
explanation as to why .this entire treasure is 
being treated in this manner in defiance and 
disregard of the Foreign Exchange Regulation 
Act. Can they suggest any international law in 
their favour when they are asking us to pay 
Rs. 50 lakhs for the Tibetan refugees? But I 
know that there are humane considerations. 
Many hon. Members would like to see these 
refugees well-fed and well-clad I do not mind 
that kind of thing. But are we not entitled   
first of all, to put 
a moral claim before the Dalai  Lama and his 
entourage that 'it is your job to help us in 
looking after these refugees, that the cost of 
maintaining the refugees should be a first 
charge on the moneys and treasures that you 
have brought into this country?' That is our 
moral claim. Have we put in a clam of this 
kind especially when they are themselves 
saying so? While for propaganda purposes 
they are saying that the moneys would be 
utilised' for the relief of the Tibetan refugees, 
all the moneys are being spent— even on 
their own admission—for send- 

ing delegates to the U.N. to speak against 
India and China. I must say it is a serious 
matter by all accounts. 

Then, Sir, legally also you have the right and 
it is this. First of all, if there is the property of 
a State, which has somehow or other found its 
way into India, well, I think it is a matter to be 
taken up in that context and to be seen that the 
moneys are spent not for other purposes but for 
maintaining the subjects or the citizens of that 
State who have sought asylum here. That is 
how it is done under international law. We 
know of princes and others going from one 
country to another with treasure and who 
volun-tarily—it is very often voluntary— place 
the money at the disposal—unless it be purely 
private funds—of the Government which gives 
them asylum, so that such moneys could be 
utilised for looking after the citizens of the 
particular State from which the particular ruler 
or person has sought asylum. Such are the 
international practices. But this is not being 
done. And if this is not being done, why should 
we not enforce it? This is our moral duty. We 
are in a strong moral position to put in the 
claim. I say: By all means spend on them. I do 
not say that they should die in the streets, in 
the towns of India or in the villages of India. 
For good or bad, since they have sought 
asylum here, well, Indian kindness must not 
fail even in respect of people who took part in 
a rebellion. But then it is also our moral right 
to expect that the moneys which have come 
into this country, moneys got from them, 
whether by way of some gifts or some other 
thing, by way of all kinds of things that have 
taken place in a religious context, should be 
utilised for the succour of these men. It is a 
moral cons deration. If somebody in the 
entourage of the Dalai Lama . . . 

THE VICE-CHAIRMAN (SHRI DAHY-
ABHAI V. PATEL): Mr. Gupta, you have been 
speaking for half an hour; you must now 
conclude your remarks. 
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being so utilised, we should point it out so that 
it could be so utilised. Secondly, Sir, the legal 
position is very serious.    I do not know, Sir, 
whether you  have  seen   such  a gold  rush  in 
Calcutta or in any other place without being 
affected by any law.    Can you tell me. Sir, of 
any civilised country in the world where gold 
passed from hand   to   hand   across   the   
frontiers without   coming   in   touch   with     
any municipal law?    I should like to know it 
from you, Sir.   You are very well-read, Sir,—
may not be a lawyer that way, but as wise men 
following world events,—can you give me an 
example like this?   There are the United States 
of America, France, Switzerland, Italy, and 
other countries in the world, and can you cite 
one country,  Sir, which allows gold to be 
brought in in complete  disregard  of the  
existing  laws, in violation of the existing 
law?., and then  allows  transactions to be 
made in  respect  of such gold  and treasure in 
violation  and  contravention  of all the ex sting 
laws?    That is the question that I put before 
you, and here therefore,    Sir,   the    
Government    is guilty of a dereliction of duty.   
Government is guilty of conniving at illegal  
transactions.     The  Reserve  Bank is guilty of 
a dereliction of duty in this matter,   for  it   
was   the   duty   of   the Reserve Bank to  call 
for    papers,  if necessary, invoking section  19  
of the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, in 
order to acquaint itself with the particulars of 
the assets.    But it has not done so and it is a 
dereliction of duty. Then, Sir, the Government 
have been conniving at violation of its own 
laws. That   is   the   most   tragic   part   of   it. 
Small fries are arrested for violation of foreign     
exchange    regulations,     and every year there 
were 3,000 cases, but here is  a wholesale,  a    
monumental, shall we say, a Himalayan 
violation of foreign exchange   regulations,   
violation  of section after section,  chapter after 
chapter, and I find the Treasury Benches are 
still happy. I do not know what is in their mind. 
but it is  our duty from the opposition side to 
pull them up.    It is our duty to tell them that 
the country shall not tolerate, for 

political or  other considerations, this flagrant 
violation of the Foreign Exchange    Regulation    
Act    and    other municipal   laws   of  the  
country,   and the country shall not tolerate, at 
any cost,   the   connivance  on  the  part  of the  
Government when  such violation is taking 
place.    Worship him, whatever you call him, 
the Dalai Lama, as much as you like.   The 
Ministers can take offerings to him as much as 
they Like and unburden themselves of the 
burden of sins.    It is good; I do  not mind that.   
But I do not like the Finance Ministry to watch 
and look on when, under their nose, in the 
Calcutta stork exchange, in the banks on Neiaji 
Subhas  Road  in    Calcutta     and    at other 
places in defiance of the whole system of our 
law, provisions of our foreign exchange 
regulations are being openly violated and 
announcements of violations are being made in 
advance. It    is    a    strange    state    of    
affairs. Sir,  I  do     not wish     to  say     very 
much.   I have thought over this matter which,  
as  I have  submitted,    is    all wrong, is all 
illegally done.   You owe an explanation to the 
country because every point that I have made is 
based on your own law and my submission has 
been that there has been a clear violation of  
certain  definite law and named  provsions  of  
that    law,    the Foreign Exchange Regulation 
Act. You cannot  escape  an  answer  to  such  a 
challenge  being  made,   even     if  the 
chailenge be made from this side of the 
Opposition.    Sir, it is a most regrettable thing. 

Therefore I suggest to the Government the 
following course. The Government should 
immediately direct the Reserve Bank to freeze 
all transactions and operations in respect of 
the treasure imported by or on behalf of the 
Dalai Lama. The Government should declare 
ab  initio void all transactions that have taken 
place in contravention, directly of  indirectly, 
of the provisions of foreign exchange regula-
tions. The. Government should issue 
directives through the Reserve Bank 
mechanhm and otherwise to all those who are 
interested or had interest in these  transactions  
that  such  transact 
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considered  illegal  and will be liable to the 
penalty in section 23  of the   Foreign  
Exchange  Regulation   Act,   1947.     
Government  should, section 19, ask for full 
particulars  and  information  with  regard   to 
every  item  of the property  that has been   
brought  into   this   country,   and place a 
statement on the Table of the House with 
respect to such properties whioh have been 
imported.    Then the Government  should  
decide  its  course of action with regard to the 
transaction   after   freezing     the    properties. 
As far as the Dalai Lama is concerned, you 
will be surprised, Sir, that he is a man of 
crores, but he and his entourage are being 
looked after by us and by people like Birlas.    
Birla can be generous; let him be generous, but 
why should you?    Now ask the Dalai Lama 
himself to spend a little money our of those 
crores.    At least let him ask for your 
assistance before you go to  offer  it yourself.    
Well,   Sir,  that factor has also to be taken into 
account hud the Government should make    a 
formal  not    informal—representation to that 
private citizen from the People's Republic of 
China, namely the Dalai Lama,   and   the  
members   of  his  entourage,  to make  
available this fund since they  have themselves 
said  that they  would  use  it  for  the   relief  
or succour of the Tibetan refugees. After doing  
all   this  I  can   understand  the Government 
coming here  and asking for money.    They 
have done nothing of the kind.    Let me tell 
you, Sir, to day you may escape  it, but there is 
the comity of nations, there is the International  
Court of Justice;  there is the United Nations, 
and people study each   other's   affairs   today.       
In   the modern world they study each other's 
arrairs and I think  we have in such a   
situation   entered   into   a   first-rate scandal 
over this matter and I think, before  it  is  too     
late,       Government should retrace its step, 
make amends and change the position so that 
everything is brought within  the scope  of law 
and every transaction with regard to the status 
of the properties is first of all properly    
ascertained    and the transactions are made 
according to the law. Finally, Sir, I would have    
sug- 

gested perhaps, the prosecution of see people 
who had been engaged in transactions under 
section 23 of the Foreign Exchange 
Regulation Act. I think there is a strong case 
for the prosecution of  Mr  Thondup, Dalai 
Lama's brother, and oilier people who have 
been dealing with this property in clear and 
wilful contravention of the Foreign Exchange 
Regulations Act. I hope, Sir, proceedings will 
be started against such people who have been 
violating the law of the land cheating the 
Government and circumventing other  
regulations  and  provisions. 

Sir, so far as the grant is concerned, if the 
Prime Minister wants Rs. 50 lakhs for his own 
sake, by all means, let him have it. But 
normally it is morally repugnant to call upon 
us to sanction all this amount when some-ether 
people are sitting over treasures worth crores 
of rupees and disposing them of as if there is 
no civilised law, there is no regulation, there is 
no Government in. the country. It is for the 
Hoise to decide. I have brought the whole 
thing to the notice of the House and of the 
country, because I think it is a matter of major 
importance and: it is to be treated at the highest 
level by the Government, not in the light 
manner in which they have been treating the 
whole thing. Sir, I hope the hon. Minister, 
specially the Finance Minister, or whoever 
speaks on his behalf, will satisfy the House, 
not by making statements because he should 
knew that I have a right to go to the Supreme 
Court, I think, or some High Court, to seek 
injunctions on the whole thing. I am just 
mentioning that one can go to a High Court 
and seek injunctions to prevent all these tran-
sactions, whether they will be granted the 
injunction or not, is for the court to decide. The 
hen. Minister will be in the soup if such an 
injunction were sought for. The hon. Members 
opposite hove, therefore, to make a clean 
breast of everything, they should admit before 
the bar of the House that they have committed 
a grave error and they have to give an 
assurance that they would obey law and they 
would enforce obedience to law. 
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External Affairs Ministry is concerned, I 
would only request the hon. lady Deputy 
Minister to discuss this matter with her 
superior because I feel the Prime Minister of 
India has been wrongly advised. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: You do 
not have to advise us. We have done all that 

SHRI BHUPESP GUPTA: Even before 
Hearing me? You knew that I would      .    .   
. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: We do not 
wait for instructions from you. 

SHRI BHUPESK GUPTA: Madam, may I 
request you, implore you, beseech you if you 
do not like 'instructions'? There is no harm. 
Sir, I may implore the hon. lady Member not 
to discuss things by a look at my face, but to 
discuss the thing after she has listened to me. 

SHRI P. N. SAPRU: You should be 
examined also. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: You can give 
your advice, Mr. Sapru; you are a  lawyer. 

 
SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: To be exact, it 

should be High Court. We can seek a writ 
there. I am not going there, but one can take a 
writ. 

 

This should be discussed. Sir, the Prime 
Minister has not been rightly advised in this 
matter by the other Ministries concerned, 
especially the Finance Ministry I would 
appeal to the Prime Minister to ask for an ex-
planation from the Ministry of Finance and, 
through it, from the Reserve Bank as to how 
they behaved in this matter. I should say the 
Prime Minister has been deliberately misled in 
the whole matter, because I cannot believe 
that consciously the Prime Minister will 
permit the contravention of law.    Thank you. 
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SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: If he is the 
Vice-chairman, then your Vice-Chairman 
should be receiving him at the airport.    
Don't you know  that? 
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SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: Mr. 

Deputy Chairman   .   .   . 

Where is Mr. Bhupesh Gupta? 

4 P.M. 

SHRI P. D. HIMATSINGKA: He 
does not want to hear anybody. 

DR. R. B. GOUR: He left to take a cup of 
tea and I have already sent word through a 
colleague of mine. Let not this insinuation be 
made. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: When the 
Leader of the Communist Party warned me 
this morning that he was going to speak on the 
Tibetan refugees and the Dalsi Lama's 
treasure, I had no idea that he was going to be 
so eloquent about the foreign exchange 
regulations and the violation of the foreign 
exchange rules. Since he has categorically ac-
cused the Government of various things, 
almost in the same style as Burke and 
Sheridan accusing Warren Hastings in the 
Parliament,—I would not like to imitate him 
but—I would like to point out how very 
wrong he was on all counts. 

SHRI P. D. HIMATSINGKA: Always he is. 
SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: He asked 

as to why we were asking for this   sum   of  
money  since   the   House 
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had already voted in August last some ten 
lakhs of rupees. At that time we had no idea at 
all of the magnitude of the problem of Tibetan 
refugees in India and the ten lakhs of rupees 
granted last August was only an ad hoc grant. 
The stream of refugees began to swell and 
today we have more than sixteen thousand 
Tibetan refugees _ in India. Even though the 
Chinese take adequate precautions on the 
border, we still find twenty to twenty-five 
Tibetan refugees coming into India everyday. 
It would have been more profitable for Shri 
Bhupesh Gupta and other to see that 
conditions in Tibet are such that the Tibetans 
do not have to leave their homes and seek 
refugee in our country. That would have been 
a real service. That is the reason why, Sir, we 
have to ask for Rs. 39 lakhs. The people who 
have already come into India have to be 
settled, have to be educated and have to be 
rehabilitated and I am sure, notwithstanding 
Mr. Gupta's eloquence, the House will vote the 
grant. 

Sir, it is only natural and in the real style of 
the hon. Member that he should accuse 
somebody and whether that accusation is right 
or wrong, it is nobody's business, certainly not 
his business. I would like to point out here that 
all the things that the hon. Member wanted the 
Government to do have been done. For 
instance, in 1950, when the Dalai Lama and 
his Ministers fled to Yatung and sought the 
permission of the Sikkim Government to bring 
in some treasures for safe keeping, we were 
consulted and permission was given. The hon. 
Member wanted to know whether the treasure 
belonged to the Chinese Government or 
whether it was the personnel treasure of the 
Dalai Lama. Sir, it has been claimed on behalf 
of the Dalai Lama that the treasure which is 
only a part of the total Potala treasure is 
entirely the Dalai Lama's private property. I 
hope his fears are assuaged by this statement 
and if there is anybody who wants to  
challenge  the  ownership    of    the 

Dalai Lama's property, it is for him to go to a 
court of law and establish the ownership. That 
the hon. Member is not prepared to do. He 
said, 'Let somebody go to the court'. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA:     I    said, 
Assuming it is private property . . . 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: I am not 
yielding. 

He then said that these treasures were 
removed under our very eyes, that the foreign 
exchange rules were violated and that we were 
helpless in the matter. Of course, if the hon. 
Member knows something more about the 
coming in of gold from Tibet and the trade 
relationship between Sikkim and India, he 
would not have wasted his time or the time of 
the House on this point. For instance, this trea-
sure came to India from Sikkim. The original 
bringing in of the treasure into Sikkim was by 
an agreement with the Sikkim Government 
and the treasure was there for the last eight or 
nine years. A portion of it was in the 
meantime actually converted into currency to 
purchase things for the Tibetan Government, I 
think in 1954 or 1956, I am not quite sure 
when. As far as the rest is concerned, under 
our treaty arrangements, we do not levy any 
import or other form of duty on goods coming 
from Sikkim. Then the question is about the 
levy of duty on gold. We never levy any duty 
on gold if brought from Tibet. 

I hope the hon. Member is listening  
carefully. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: It is not a 
question of duty; it is a question of 
declaration. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: There is, of 
course, duty on silver and silver dollar but this 
was also temporarily waived in the case of 
refugees and traders. 

Then the hon. Member raised the question 
of the treasure being brought 
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from Sikkim. It is true that the West Bengal 
Government was requested by us to provide 
an armed escort to bring the treasure down to 
Calcutta. I must admit that we really do not 
know the exact nature of the treasure brought. 
I think the Finance Ministry will inquire into 
that and do the needful as it is doing even 
without the very valuable suggestion made by 
the hon. Member. 

As to how the treasure will be used will 
depend upon the wisdom with which the Dalai 
Lama wants to make use of the amount that he 
will get by converting it. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: And our law  
does not matter? 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: It matters 
but we cannot go on on hypothetical things. 
He said, 'Suppose this thing happened, what 
will happen? Has Government done anything?' 
and so on. (Interruption.) I am not yielding. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I know the hon. 
Minister cannot, because then it will be more 
difficult. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: The hon. 
Member read out the entire Foreign Exchange 
Control Act which has nothing to do with this 
measure. Here it is a question of bullion, gold 
and silver. I also informed the House of the 
condition under which gold and silver can 
come into India through Sikkim and from 
Tibet. 

For the rest, as to what is going to happen, 
it will depend, as I pointed out earlier, on the 
wisdom with which the Dalai Lama will make 
use of it. I am sure he is not going to finance 
agitations against the Government of India or 
against the party, as the hon. Member thinks. I 
am sure he is wise enough not to abuse our 
hospitality and the treatment that the Indian 
Government have given him. 

DR. R. B. GOUR: But you said he was very 
young and he is not wise enough. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: He is very 
young and, therefore, he will be in control of 
the treasures for many many  years. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: It looks as if the 
soul of the departed Dalai Lama has entered 
into you. That is why  you  are speaking  like  
this. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: Well, the 
soul of the enemies of the Dalai Lama seems 
to have entered into you. That is why you are 
saying like this. 

SHRI M. GOVINDA REDDY (Mysore): 
Not the soul, but the ghost. 

DIWAN CHAMAN LALL (Punjab): Very 
wrong, very wrong. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: It is for the 
Dalai Lama, Sir, and it has nothing to do 
whatever with the Rs. 39 lakhs for which 
appropriation is made in this Bill. If the hon. 
Member had wanted some information about 
this sum of Rs. 39 lakhs, as to how it was 
going to be spent, there would have been some 
sense in it; on the other hand, he wasted a lot 
of time about the possibility of this money 
being used for anti-Communist activities in 
India. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: There is not 
much time for that. I only suggested that you 
get that. 

SHRIMATI LAKSHMI MENON: I do not 
have anything more to add except that 
whatever has been dealt with by me will be 
taken over by the Finance Ministry. For the 
rest, I would like to assure the House that the 
Government of India are fully aware of what is 
happening. The Law Ministry and the Finance 
Ministry were also consulted as to the steps 
that had been taken and, therefore, there is no 
need whatever for us to follow the instruction 
given by the hon. Member. 
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SHRI JASPAT ROY KAPOOR (Uttar 

Pradesh): Mr. Deputy Chairman, while 
according my support to the Appropriation 
Bill which is before us, I would like to deal 
with some of the heads under which the 
demands are being made. To start with 1 
would like to deal briefly, but with great 
pleasure, with Demand No. 11 under the head 
'Defence Services—Effective —Air Force'. 

First of all, I would like to take this 
opportunity to express my appreciation and I 
hope the whole House will share my views on 
this subject, on the very able, efficient and 
effective manner in which our Defence 
Services, and more particularly the Air Force, 
are rendering service in the matter of defence 
of the country. Sir, theirs is a very hard job. 
They not only live under difficult conditions 
but •every day they are running great risks and 
any amount spent over them in providing 
amenities for them and also for the purpose of 
increasing their strength, particularly in the 
present international situation and in the 
present national situation in our country—-in 
view of the Chinese aggression, if I may be 
permitted to call it so—is well spent and I 
have therefore very great pleasure in according 
my whole-hearted support to this Demand, 
most of which will be utilised for the purpose 
of increasing the strength of the personnel. 

Next, I would like to refer to Demand No. 
18 over which my hon. friend, Mr. Bhupesh 
Gupta, waxed so eloquent. An effective reply 
to all the criticism that has been made by Mr. 
Bhupesh Gupta has already been given by the 
hon. Deputy Minister, Mrs. Lakshmi Menon. 
Sir, I do not know how all the remarks which 
Mr. Bhupesh Gupta made were relevant for 
the purpose of the consideration of the 
Appropriation Bill, and more particularly 
under the head 'External Affairs'. But then we 
know what great indulgence is being extended 
to him by the    Chair whenever 

he speaks, whether he speaks on things 
relevant or irrelevant. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Sir, I take strong 
exception to this. It is not for him to suggest 
such things. 

SHRI JASPAT ROY KAPOOR:  If it 
is not for me, I do not know which other 
particular Member's duty he would like it to 
be. If he does not want this criticism from me, 
I can leave this remark to be made by my hon. 
friend, Mr. Himatsingka; if his words are 
sweeter to Mr. Bhupesh Gupta, I will leave 
this duty to be performed by him. Anyway, I 
do not know why he should have been so 
much enamoured of the gold, silver and 
jewellery that have been brought into this 
country by the Dalai Lama, I thought gold, 
silver and jewellery were just the things with 
which Mr. Bhupesh Gupta would never like to 
associate   himself.   Anyway,   Sir . . . 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I want them to 
take them over. 

SHRI P. D. HIMATSINGKA: It is loss to 
China; therefore he is feeling it. 

SHRI JASPAT ROY KAPOOR:    My 
hon. friend. Mr. Himatsingka, just reminds me 
that this means loss to China and that was 
exactly the reason why he was so much 
irritated over the fact that the Dalai Lama was 
allowed to bring gold, silver and jewellery 
here. As a matter of fact   .    .   . 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I suggested that 
the Government of India should take them 
over. 

SHRI JASPAT ROY KAPOOR: Please, let 
me proceed. 

As a matter of fact, it is of considerable 
advantage to our country that he should have 
brought all these things here because, as we 
know, he is going to spend all of them, at least 
most of them, for the purpose of giving  aid  
and  succour   to     Tibetan 
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our Government has spent a lot of money and 
rightly proposes to spend a lot of more money 
for their rehabilitation, and to the extent to 
which the Dalai Lama himself would be able 
to render aid to these Tibetan refugees, to 
rehabilitate them, our liability would be 
reduced and rather than feeling irritated over 
this, we should feel happy that all these 
resources of the Dalai Lama would be utilised 
for purposes for which otherwise we would 
have had to utilise our own resources. 

Next I would turn to Demand No. 51 under 
'Census'. I would like to take this opportunity 
to express our sense of pleasure and 
gratification over the fact that during the 
course of the next census, census operations in 
the State of Kashmir will also be carried on 
under the authority of our own Census 
Commissioner. That is one more step forward 
in the process- of complete integration of the 
State of Kashmir with India. 

Now, Sir, my hon. friend, Dr. Gour, while   
dealing  with   this   subject   unnecessarily   
spoke   about   enumeration of Urdu-speaking 
people in Bihar and Uttar Pradesh, and said it 
was wrong. I do not know on what basis he 
made this accusation.    So far as we know, 
these    enumerators'       activities     are carried  
on  very  fairly,  honestly  and properly,   and   
certainly  there   is    no bias   in   the  minds   
of     enumerators against Urdu or any bias in 
favour of Hindi,  or  for the  matter  of  that,  in 
favour  of or against  any    particular language.   
But  then   the  question  is, what  should  these  
enumerators    do? Should they exercise their 
own mind on the subject or should they abide 
by what the persons  tell  them?      If 
somebody says, 'my mother-tongue is Hindi'  
and another says  it is    Urdu, what are they to 
do?    I think the best thing for them is to take 
down what the person concerned says his 
mother-tongue to be.   I do not know why my 
hon. friend. Dr. Gour, should feel sur-Dnseri 
about the    number    of    Urdu 

speaking people which has been enumerated 
and put at about 44 lakhs in U.P. There is 
nothing to be surprised about it. Urdu, 
technically as it is called, is spoken by people 
in Uttar Pradesh in the big cities only in the 
western areas. In the eastern areas of Uttar 
Pradesh even in the cities the language spoken 
is Hindi, of course, not the Sanskritised Hindi, 
but ordinary Hindi; call it Hindustani, if you 
like, and the people in the villages—almost all 
of them— whether they are Hindus or 
Muslims, to whatever faith they may belong, 
speak either Hindi or a dialect of Hindi. 

SHRI FARIDUL HAQ ANSARI: I do not 
agree     with  that. 

SHRI JASPAT ROY KAPOOR: And only 
one per cent, in the whole area, you will find, 
speak what is technically called Urdu. 
Therefore, there is absolutely no justification 
for Dr. Gour to feel that enumeration has not 
been carried on in a fair and impartial manner. 

Then  my  hon.   friend,     Dr.   Gour, 
referred to the question of allowances to Indian 
Rulers.   There is a demand for a small amount 
and that demand is based on the fact that a few  
of the Rulers did not, in the past one or two 
years,   draw   their   pensions.   Now,   I do not 
know what possible objection can  any honest 
person  have  to    the payment  of one's just  
dues.   It  may ba that that is not the 
Communist way of doing  things,    of    
keeping    their promises and to make    
payments    to persons to whom they are really 
and justly   due  but  we who  stand  committed 
to make such payments to the Rulers should 
ever be ready to pay them their dues whether 
they are of the  current  period   or   whether   
they are arrears. 

Next I come to Demand No. 60 under 
which a certain amount is being demanded for 
the National Academy of Administration 
which has been established at Mussoorie.    
On a 
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previous  occasion I had the     opportunity to 
deal with the question    of Services.    This 
question of Administrative   Services  has   
rightly   engaged our attention to a substantial    
extent recently.    As we all know, even the 
Congress at its last session in Bangalore passed 
a Resolution, the substantive portion of which  
related to the Administrative    Services.    We 
are all having very good Plans. Our planning is  
nice  and  we  are  embarking  now on many big 
and useful projects but then the question before 
us always is now   to  successfully   implement     
our plans.   And our Plans cannot be suc-
cessfully     implemented     until     and unless 
we have an efficient Administrative Service.    
For that reason it is very necessary to have good 
training institutions   for      them,      institutions 
where not only theoretical and practical  training  
should  be  imparted  but where the entire 
outlook of the new entrants   should  be   so  
moulded  that they may be able to just fit in with 
the  changing     situation,     with     the 
changing circumstances and with the changing    
needs    of       the    country. I would not take 
much more time of the House on this subject.    
But I do feel  very  strongly  that  any   amount 
spent  on   giving  proper     training  to our  
administrative   services  is     well spent.    Not 
only that.    We must see that the policy which 
we have adopted,  which  the  Central     
Government have  adopted,  must be 
implemented. On more than one  occasion  I    
have drawn  the  attention  of  the  Government  
to  their   own   circular     which they   issued 
about four     years     ago based on the 
recommendations of the States  Reorganisation  
Commission  to the  effect   that  at  least  one-
third   of the  Indian     Administrative     Service 
personnel in any State    must    come from 
outside that State.    Now,    that was a 
recommendation  of the States Reorganisation       
Commission        and rightly accepted by the 
Government. They sent out    a circular to all the 
various State Governments impressing on them 
the necessity and the desirability  of 
implementing  that     particular recommendation 
of the    States Reorganisation Commission.       
As    a 

matter of fact,  though four  or    five years have 
passed since then, hardly anything has been done 
in that direction.   Now, we are told that the State 
Governments are not very happy over this  
suggestion of the States Reorganisation 
Commission and the circular issued to  them  by 
the "Central Government,   because   the   State   
Governments  want,  generally  speaking,     to 
have people of their own choice, from their  own     
States.    But     then     the Central  Government  
ought  to see  to it, not only to impress  on the 
State Governments  but   also  to  see  to     it that 
this very  important    suggestion of theirs, this  
important directive  of theirs, based as it is in  
the interest of the unity of the country and in the 
interest of proper and effective administration, is 
implemented both in letter and spirit.    Unless 
and until we    do that, I think the unity of the 
country runs a very great risk.    I will, therefore, 
on every possible occasion go on repeating, with 
all the emphasis    at my   command,   that  this     
suggestion must be implemented. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: That will do, 
Mr. Kapoor. There are two more speakers. 
You have to give them some time. 

SHRI JASPAT ROY KAPOOR: Then, I will 
not encroach on their time. I will close my 
remarks only by referring to demand No. 117 
according to which a certain amount is being 
demanded by the Central Government for the 
purpose of that being invested in the Finance 
Corporation of the State of Assam, so that in 
the backward area of Tripura small-scale 
industries may be encouraged. We must give 
our wholehearted support to it and I hope and 
trust that in this industrially backward State of 
Tripura, at least one, if not more, industrial 
estate would be soon established and that an 
amending legislation to the Finance 
Corporation Act would soon be introduced in 
Parliament enabling the Government to invest 
some of their money in equity capital of small-
scale industries.    Investment  in   the   shape     
of 
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small-scale industries is very necessary to 
encourage and give fillip to small-scale 
industries in the backward areas like Tripura, 
though it may not be necessary in ether States 
where large-scale and small-scale industries 
are already established. 

 
I  must  keep  to  my  promise     and must 

close now. 

DR. H.  N.  KUNZRU     (Uttar    Pradesh) :   
Mr.  Deputy  Chairman,  I  am glad to see that 
Parliament has been asked to sanction 
additional expenditure on the Air Force.   But 
my pleasure is tempered by    the    fact     that 
the  largest  item   in   connection  with the   
additional   grant  that    we      are asked   to 
approve relates to payments for aircraft and 
stores, which    were expected to be made in 
1958-59    but which   did  not   materialise   in      
that year.    There are comparatively smaller 
sums  that really relate    to    the expenditure 
for  the  year  1960-61.    I should have liked, 
consistently    with the  usual  considerations  
that     apply to the giving of information 
regarding the Defence Services, that we should 
have been told a little more clearly of the   
arrangements  that     have     been made and are 
being made this year in order to  strengthen  the     
defence  of our  borders.    I  note  first  that     
the additional expenditure that we    have been 
asked to agree to relates    only to the Air Force 
and here too three-quarters  of it  or more than    
three-quarters   of  it  relates   to     payments 
that  were  expected  to  be     made  in 1958-59.    
It does not seem, therefore, that we have done 
much to strengthen our defences during the 
year 1959-60. We have learnt by painful 
experience that it is necessary for us to develop 
our  strength  in order to provide for the full 
security of our     borders.    I should have 
thought, therefore, when these supplementary 
estimates    were presented, that we would be 
supplied with  fuller     information      than  has 
been done, and that we would know the 
arrangements made not in connec- 

tion  with  one  service  only,     but  at leasi   in  
connection  with  one     other service too, in 
order to enable us to fulfil  the  responsibility 
that we owe to  the  people  living  in  the     
border areas.    I have no doubt that our Air 
Force will not hesitate to  undertake any   task  
that  it  is  asked   to,  but  I think it is necessary 
on our part to enable it to have the strength and 
the resources that will place it in a position to 
perform its duty towards the country.    The 
only really large item that relates  to  schemes 
newly  sanctioned and the increased 
requirements on the basis of the latest supply 
position is a sum of about Rs. 871/2 lakhs. Now,  
how  much is  this  due to     the purchase  of  
aircraft  and     stores  for which payment was 
expected    to be made in 1958-59, I do not 
know.    If we can be told how much is due to 
the purchase of aircraft and stores I have   
already   referred   to   and  how much is  really  
new and     relates  to the current year, we shall 
be    in    a better  position  to     understand     
the character of the efforts made by the 
Government during the current year, to enable 
us to safeguard the security of the border areas.   
Sir, I would like to say only one word more 
before I sit down.    I am glad to see that this 
National Administrative     College     is going 
to be established where senior officers   will   
receive   advanced   training.    It is  desirable  
in  the     present circumstances  that our 
officers,    who have to work in circumstances 
entirely different from those in which they had 
to work about twelve years ago, should fully 
understand the     adjustments required to be 
made in order to enable them to discharge their 
new duties effectively.    I hope that    this 
institution will be of such a character as to give 
the officers the high degree of training required.    
In the present days I think that the adequate 
training of the civil servants is as necessary as 
the proper training of the officers of the 
Defence services.    Really it is only when we 
act with courage, imagination and efficiency 
both in the civil and military sphere that we can 
hope to   raise   our   country   to   the      level 
which we ardently wish  to    see    it 
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occupies. We shall have to use every ounce of 
our strength in order to carry out all those 
schemes on which not merely the welfare but 
also the future of our country depends. I trust, 
therefore, that no considerations of economy 
will, after the establishment of the College, 
prevent Government from making it a first 
class institution. I am sorry to say that for 
many years the training of new recruits to the 
I.A.S. was sadly neglected. I think it is only 
during the last four or five years that attention 
has been paid to this important subject. I hope 
that the new College will not, because of our 
other needs, ever be in the sorry position in 
which the Indian Administrative School was. 
If its necessity continues to be realised in 
practice as well as in theory, which has 
already been Tecognized, then it should give 
us civil servants who would be fully trained to 
take up the new duties that the country expects 
them to discharge and be a source of strength 
to the State and an example to the younger 
members of the Services. 

THE DEPUTY MINISTER OF DEFENCE 
(SARDAR S. S. MAJITHIA) : Sir, I will just 
intervene for a minute only. There was one 
point raised by my hon. friend, and that was 
about this supplementary demand for the Air 
Force. The position is that in 1958-59, 
according to the contracts—I cannot divulge 
what the contracts were because that would 
ultimately show what aircraft they were and 
all that, but I can only say that accoruding to 
the contracts—entered into we expected a 
certain number of aircraft to come in and 
payments to be made for those aircraft as they 
were delivered. Unfortunately they were not 
delivered when we expected them in 1958-59 
but they were delivered in 1959-60, and there-
fore we had to come up with a supplementary 
demand for those aircraft and other stores 
pertaining to them, payments for which had to 
be made; hence this supplementary demand in 
this particular respect for Rs. 472 laks. 

The other point raised was about the 
Defence College. I should like to assure this 
House, and through this House the country, 
that we embarked upon this College after very 
careful consideration. We intend to run it at 
the highest standards which are expected. As 
you know, Sir, previously we were sending 
our officers— a few of them, perhaps one or 
two, depending upon the vacancies—to the 
Imperial Defence College. We thought that it 
was only in the fitness of things—we should 
not only not be satisfied but we could not 
remain satisfied with one or two officers 
receiving training during the year— that more 
men should receive training, an i for that 
purpose we wanted to have our own college, 
and that is why we did embark upon it. I need 
hardly assure you again, Sir, that the College 
will function with the highest standards 

Apart from these, there have been no other 
points raised.    Thank you, Sir. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. 
Solomon.    Please be very brief. 

SHRI P. A. SOLOMON (Kerala): Mr. 
Deputy Chairman, I would like to say a few 
words regarding item No. 120 dealing with 
the purchase of foodgrains. Sir, in the 
previous Budget, that is the Budget for 1959-
60, there was an allotment of Rs. 186.38 
crores, for the import of foodgrains, and now 
over and above that for the purchase of 
foodgrains the amount is Rs. 17.75 crores 
granted by the Lok Sabha, and it is before us. 
So, I would like to know whether we are 
importing foodgrains over and above the 
calculation in the Budget here or we are 
purchasing foodgrains in our country itself. 
That is one thing. 

Now, Sir, we are all aware that everywhere 
the prices of foodgrains are increasing. At the 
same time we are told that there are bumper 
crops, that the cultivation is improving, and so 
on and so forth. If it is so, then why  has   this   
additional  expenditure 
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been necessary for the same year, apart from 
the allotted amount? That is what I want to 
know. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: Sir, I am not, able to 
follow it. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. 
Solomon, please come before the mike. 

SHRI     P.     A.     SOLOMON:   Sir,  I thought 
that I would get some more time to deal with 
other points. Now, Sir, I would like to say a few 
words about item No. 53—Privy Purses and 
Allowances   of   Indian   Rulers.    It   is not a 
question    of party politics. Our country  is  
facing     a     very     serious financial   crisis.    
Actually   we     want support from outside.    
At the    same time we are losing huge amounts 
for this purpose.   I know that in   Kerala our 
Ruler is getting about     Rs.     21 lakhs as privy 
purse.    I do not know how he is using this 
amount. Actually it  is  not  spent     for     any     
purpose, neither for agricultural purpose    nor 
for  industrial  purpose,   nor  for     his own  
personal   purpose,   because      he has   so   
much  money   with   him.     So I  think  it is  
time     to     take     some measures  to  cut  
down  these     privy purses.    Or at least the  
Government must take  the initiative to ask     
the Princes to contribute their amount of the 
privy purse for the     purpose  of planning  for 
the     welfare     of     the State. 

I do not want to take more time and with 
these words, I conclude my remarks. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: Mr. Deputy 
Chairman, I am very grateful to the hon. 
Members who have participated in this 
discussion for the illuminating contribution 
that  they have  made. 

One or two hon. Members referred to the 
question of Urdu in the enumeration in the 
census. The point was made that the 
enumeration for Urdu in the last census in UP. 
was only 43 lakhs whereas the Muslim 
population  which  was     supposed   to 

know Urdu there was much more. It is true that 
the Muslim population in UP. is 90 lakhs and the 
enumeration of Urdu as    mother-tongue    is    
only 43  lakhs.    But  hon.  Members     perhaps  
forget  that  there    is     another enumeration.     
Everybody   was   asked to  give his mother-
tongue as    Hindi or  as Urdu.    There is also     
another entry  as  Hindustani  and  the     figure 
for Hindustani is 57 lakhs    in    U.P. So, it is 
quite possible—rather it    is highly probably—
that those who gave Hindustani   as   their  
language     were also the people who spoke 
Urdu.    If we   add  these   two     figures—57   
and 43—it comes to    100,    Whereas    the 
Muslim population of U.P. is 90 lakhs, the     
number     of     people     knowing Hindustani  
and Urdu  comes  to     100 lakhs.    I think that 
the    charge that the enumerators    who    went    
there either did not record Urdu or    were not 
acting properly because they were deliberately  
trying  to     bring     down Urdu  is  not fair;     
all     this     imputation  of motives  is hardly     
correct. 

DR. R. B. GOUR: No. no. It is a fact.    
Fifty-seven lakhs of people .    . 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Order,, order. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: I am sorry, Sir. 
Without hearing my argument, he is speaking. 

DR. R. B. GOUR: You said that I was only .    
.    . 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: No, no. I may repeat 
again what I said for the benefit of the hon. 
Member. The Muslim population in U.P. is 90 
lakhs. The enumeration for Urdu as mother-
tongue is 43 lakhs. There is another entry of 
enumeration known as Hindustani which is 57 
lakhs, and Hindi about 5 crores. So, it is quite 
possible that those who gave Hindustani as 
their nother-tongue in the enumeration knew 
Urdu also. Hindustani and Urdu are very much 
alike. There is a common factor between them, 
and if you add up these two    figures,  it comes  
to    one 



2215        Appropriation [29 FEB.  1960] Bill, 1960       2216 
hundred lakhs, whereas the Muslim 
population of U.P. is 90 lakhs. It is not as if I 
am saying that Hindustani should not be taken 
as Urdu or that a part of it should have gone as 
Hindi. But this imputation that the 
enumerators who went there deliberately put 
Urdu down, is not correct, and certainly the 
Government will not countenance any such 
thing. In future, every effort will be made to 
ensure that correct recording takes place of all 
the languages. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Thank you very 
much. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: Then, Sir, about the 
privy purse, to raise a general question of 
policy that the privy purse should not be given 
and that in the context of the planned 
development this money should be utilised, is 
hardly relevant at this stage. I am only saying . 
. . (Interruption.) I think the hon. Mem-"ber 
should have patience. I listened to him with 
great patience. 

(Interruption) 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Order, •odrer. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: Let me make my 
point. I think I will effectively meet his 
argument. 

The question was asked whether 
Government should come forward with any 
grant to these people and what the urgency 
was to make payments to these so-called rich 
people. It is not a question of any propriety in 
budgeting or accounting or any "Other thing. 
The policy and other things are decided once 
for all. There are set rules for supplementary 
grants. We make provision for a particular 
item in the Budget. If there is a short-fall we 
come with a supplementary demand. Against 
every item there is a similar procedure 
adopted. We make certain calculations about 
an item and then at the end of the Budget year 
we come and say, 'Well, there is going to be 
some variation in 

the estimate and we have come for a 
supplementary grant.' What is the impropriety 
in it.   .   .   . 

DR. R. B. GOUR: The arrears could be paid 
after the Budget. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: When we are 
committed to pay the arrears, why should we 
not do it now? Why should we carry it to 
another Budget year? The Finance Minister 
may have to say in his Budget Speech that this 
is the arrear. What difference does it make 
whether we do it now or a year after? 

DR. R. B. GOUR: What about the arrears to 
the employees according to the Pay 
Commission? 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: That is a 
separate question. Certainly 
their case is urgent. That I concede. But that 
does not take away the point that if there is 
some discrepancy or a payment has to be 
made or there is a short-fall in the sanctioned 
funds, the supplementary grant is asked for 
and there are set rules about it. I think the hon. 
Member should be satisfied with this 
argument. 

About defence, the hon. Dr. Kunzru made 
certain points. He spoke about the stores 
items—Rs. 87,54,000—and said that enough 
information was not there. For his benefit, I 
may point out that this sub-head provides for 
expenditure on various items—stores and 
equipment procured in India, stores and 
equipment obtained through H. A. L. even 
though it may be imports made by H. A. L. 
and stores and equipment obtained from coun-
tries other than the U.K. and the Continent. To 
give further details, this item includes the 
purchase of Dakotas—Rs. 16 lakhs; increased 
allocation for various research and other 
special projects—Rs. 60 lakhs and provision 
for other manufacture in the H. A. L.—Rs. 50 
lakhs. Dr. Kunzru spoke about the big item of 
charge in England, that is, Rs. 4,75,67,000. 
This increased requirement is mainly due to 
the carry-forward    payments 
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[Shri B. R. Bhagat.] for aircraft and stores 
which were expected to be made in 1958-59, 
but which did not materialise fully in that 
year. The surrender of funds on this account 
was of the order of Rs. 5 crores under 'Air 
frames' and 'Aviation stores.' The additional 
provision asked for is under the following 
headings:— 

Increased payments for— 
Rs. 

(a) Canberras, Gnats and 
Hunters .        .        360 lakhs. 

(b) Aviation Stores .        . 62 lakhs. 
(c) Ordnance Stores . 50 lakhs 

This is the break-up which the hon. Member 
wanted. I am sory he is not here.    This would 
have satisfied him. 

Sir, I am grateful to the hon. Members who 
raised the point about the standards of 
efficiency and the need for more efficiency in 
public administration and they have spoken 
that more amount should be spent for that 
purpose. The Government is quite aware of 
the fact that efficiency has not only to be 
maintained, but it has to be stepped up day by 
day and the future of this country and the 
future of any planned developmental pro-
gramme is more dependent on how these 
things are administered and how efficiency 
goes up, and I think the Government is very 
keen on this and fully appreciate the sentiment 
expressed by the hon. Members. 

Now, I come to the point raised by the hon. 
leader of the Communist Party in the House. 
Well, he said that the Finance Ministry or the 
Finance Minister was in the soup. He seems to 
be very fond of soup, I suppose. But I do not 
know what I should say; I am told he is a 
barrister and he knows how to advocate his 
case, but whatever provisions he has cited 
from the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 
well, they are either irrelevant or are 
inaccurate. For example, he said, referring to 
section 20 or section 19, that the provisions of 

that section have been violated, because 
somebody brings in and sells gold here. He 
perhaps does not know, it seems, that 
everybody is free to sell his gold, and if the 
property can be traced to the person, well, 
there is no harm; it is not illegal to sell gold in 
India. Every day in the Calcutta Stock 
Exchange or bullion exchange men can buy or 
sell gold. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: It is not a 
question of men; it is a question of an alien 
citizen—whatever he is— selling gold or the 
gold being sold on his behalf, which has been 
imported— according to their admission—
into this  country.    It is quite  different. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: I am coming to that. I 
am only pointing out that it is not illegal if 
somebody sells or buys gold in the market. 
Every day such transactions take place. The 
fact is, as my hon. colleague the Deputy 
Minister for External Affairs said, that this 
treasure was allowed to come to Sikkim as far 
back as 1950. The Government of India knew 
about it and the Government of India per-
mitted it.   So that point is very clear. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: May I ask a  
question,   just   one  point? 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT; If you have to ask 
any questions, I think it would be better—I 
am prepared to answer all the questions—if 
you put them later,  after I finish my 
arguments. 

As I said, Sir, in reply to his point that the 
gold is being sold, whether it is a property or 
gold or silver or bullion, as long as it can be 
traced to the owner, it can be sold. And this 
treasure was allowed to come into Sikkim. 
Sikkim is part of India for this purpose and 
between Sikkim and India there is no 
exchange control or other regulations so far as 
any goods coming from  Sikkim  are 
concerned. 

Now the important thing is that a charge is 
levelled at the Government and it is that we 
have allowed payments  outside India—in  the     
United 
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Nations—that to the other persons of the 
Dalai Lama group payments have been 
allowed. I asked him repeatedly, you will 
remember, Sir,—we cannot answer questions 
based on suppositions—if he had any specific 
charge to make. If we allowed any payments 
or they made any payments outside India 
without the permission of the Reserve Bank 
and in violation of the Foreign Exchange 
Regulation Act, certainly there everybody is 
liable and they are liable. I wanted to know 
from him specifically, but he would not meet 
the point; he would not come to the specific 
point. He would say: 'State your own case.' 
We cannot state our case on hypothesis, but 
even then I may say for the information of the 
hon. Member that no such payments have 
been made outside India. No request from him 
to us has come for making payments outside 
India. So there is no truth in it, that any 
payments violating the foreign exchange 
regulations have been made outside India, and 
I think it does not behove a responsible leader 
of a party to make charges which have no 
basis. It is not fair, just out of his wild 
imagination, to make charges against 
individuals in the country, and against the 
Government. It is highly regrettable that he 
should make a charge that we connived at it or 
that we permitted such political activities 
outside India. I think, Sir, such charges are 
serious. Before such charges were made, they 
should have been enquired into, and they are 
very highly regrettable, because there is no 
truth in them. They have not made any request 
for such payment outside the country. 

Sir, with these words I move. 

SHRI BHUPESH  GUPTA: What 
about other points? 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: You raised three 
points. What are the other points you raised? 
If you have any points to make, certainly I am 
prepared  to  answer. 

SHRI FARIDUL HAQ ANSARI: I made the 
point of the inefficient working of the Posts 
and Telegraphs Department. Inasmuch as the 
hon. Minister has not replied to this, I hope he 
will pass on my remarks to the  Minister 
concerned. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: Certainly, Six; the 
hon. Member will get an opportunity again. 
The Posts and Telegraphs budget is coming 
when we will have a fuller discussion. The 
general question of inefficiency does not 
come out of these Grants. Every year we are 
reviewing the working of the administration 
during Budget discussion, and that is why I 
did not touch on that point, also because it 
was not a specific issue, the general question  
of inefficiency. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Now let me put 
my question; I hope you will clarify. Suppose a 
Pakistani national brings some assets to Tripura 
which is a part of India, and keeps the assets 
there—gold or whatever it is— for, say, two 
years. Then he brings them to Calcutta and 
declares that they had been brought from 
Pakistan through Tripura where it remained for 
two years. Would that money be liable under 
this Act? Would that money be regarded as if it 
is an internal transaction within India itself, or 
would it be regarded as a transaction between 
two countries, involving two countries, 
although it may have rested ' at some place for 
some time? 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Again 
supposition and hypothetical question. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I want to . know 
the position because .    .    . 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: You can 
consult your lawyer. 

SHRI  BHUPESH   GUPTA:     I  have 
consulted my lawyer.    You were not here,   
Sir.     I   pointed   out—let      him meet that 
point—money came, according to their 
admission, from Tibet. 
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SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: If it is smuggling, 

no. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Money came 
from Tibet. It rested in Sikkim for some time. 
Then, now it is in Calcutta. Am I to 
understand that it is a transaction between 
Sikkim and India or am I to understand that it 
is a transaction between two countries? 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: Money was 
permitted to come; it was not smuggling. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Even so, are you 
in a position to permit circumventing this law, 
the foreign exchange regulations? 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT: I think the hon. 
Member should refresh his memory of the 
Foreign Exchange Regulation Act. The 
Government has power under that Act and the 
power is given by Parliament. The 
Government has not got the power to do 
anything in violation  of that Act. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: I should like 
Government to place the authorisation, that 
was given nine years ago, on the Table of the 
House in order to regularise this transaction. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The question 
is: 

"That the Bill to authorise payment and 
appropriation of certain further sums from 
and out of the Consolidated Fund of India 
for the services of the financial year 1959-
60, as passed by the Lok Sabha, be taken   
into   consideration." 

The motion was adopted. 

Clauses 2 and 3 and the Schedule were 
added to the Bill. 

Clause 1, the Enacting Formula and the 
Title were added to the Bill. 

SHRI B. R. BHAGAT:     I move: "That the 

Bill be returned." 

The question was proposed. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Sir, I want to say 
a few words; this is third reading. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: There is 
hardly any time. There is just time to put the 
motion to vote. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA:    Just one 
minute. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The General 
Budget is coming and you can speak.    It is 
already past five. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: You can adjourn 
the House; we can continue the   discussion   
tomorrow. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: There is no 
time; we have already exceeded the time. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: What was the 
time allotted, Sir? 

MR.  DEPUTY     CHAIRMAN:       21/2 
hours. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Anyway, Sir .    .    
. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Order, order; 
you can speak on the General Budget. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA: Well, Sir, in this 
matter the reply has been misleading, and 
prevarications have been made. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The question 
is: 

"That the Bill be returned." 

The motion was adopted. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The House 
stands adjourned till 6 p.M. for the receiving 
of the Budget papers. 

The House then adjourned at five 
of the. clock till six of the clock the 
same day. 
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6   p.M. 

The House reassembled at six of the clock, 
Mr. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN in the Chair. 

THE BUDGET   (GENERAL),  1960-61 

THE MINISTER OF REVENUE AND CIVIL 
EXPENDITURE (DR. B. GOPALA REDDI) : 
Sir, on behalf of the Finance Minister, I beg to 
lay-on the Table a statement of the estimated 
receipts and expenditure of the Government 
of India for the year 1960-61. 

DR. H. N. KUNZRU (Uttar Pradesh) : 
Before the House adjourns, I should like to 
draw your attention to the fact that the 
Finance Ministry has given us only one day 
for the study of all the papers that will be 
given to us today. Is it fair, Sir, to ask us to 
study these papers in a day? 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The debate 
will begin on Thursday instead of 
Wednesday. 

DR. H. N. KUNZRU: That means two 
days. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: It is 21/2 days. 

DR. H. N. KUNZRU: Suppose Dr. Gopala 
Reddi were not a Minister and he was asked 
to study all the documents that will be given 
to us today in two days. Could he do it in 
spite of his knowledge of finance which is 

much better than ours? I suggest, therefore, 
that in future more time should be given to us 
in order to enable us to make a proper study 
of the papers that the Government supplies. 

SHRI BHUPESH GUPTA (West Bengal): 
Sir, in this connection I also addressed a letter 
to the Chairman this morning pointing out the 
difficulties to which the hon. Member has 
referred. You said we are getting 21/2 days. 
Just now we are going. Tomorrow and the day 
after we have to participate in the discussion 
here. We have practically no time to study 
these documents. I entirely associate myself 
with the sentiments expressed by Dr. Kunzru. 
It seems that the Finance Ministry do not take 
into account the problems and the difficulties 
that we may be facing. Many Congress 
Members also have spoken to me privately 
about this matter. They share our views in this 
matter. I request you, Sir, still to consider this 
matter and have a provision for more time in 
this session. In spite of our request, if it comes 
to that, we have to submit, but it is not fair by 
us. 

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The House 
stands adjourned till 11 A.M. tomorrow. 

The House then adjourned at two 
minutes past six of the clock till 
eleven of the clock on Tuesday, the 
1st March 1960. 
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